
 

 
www.eden.gov.uk 

Rose Rouse 
Chief Executive 

Date: 31 March 2020 
 
 
 
 

Town Hall, Penrith, Cumbria CA11 7QF 

Tel: 01768 817817 

Email: cttee.admin@eden.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor M Tonkin  
 

Services Portfolio Holder Meeting Agenda - 8 April 2020 
 

A meeting is to be held with Officers at 9.00 am, on Wednesday, 8 April 2020, in the 
Communities Director's Office - Mansion House to consider the following matters: 
 

1   Declarations of Interest   
 
To receive declarations of the existence and nature of any private interests, both 
disclosable pecuniary interests and any other registrable interests, in any matter to 
be considered or being considered. 
 

2   Devolution of Upper Eden Visitors Centre, Kirkby Stephen  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To consider report PP7/20 from the Assistant Director Commissioning and Technical 
Services which is attached and which requests consideration be given to the 
devolution of the Upper Eden Visitors Centre in Kirkby Stephen to Kirkby Stephen 
Town Council. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS that:  

1) The Upper Eden Visitors Centre in Kirkby Stephen is transferred freehold to 
Kirkby Stephen Town Council with terms imposing restrictive covenants on 
any future use. 

2) That the transfer of the visitors centre includes the stone sheep sculptures; 
and 

3) The Assistant Director of Governance be given delegated authority to 
determine the detailed terms of such transfer. 

 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
Rose Rouse 
Chief Executive 
 
Democratic Services Contact: Vivien Little 
 



 

www.eden.gov.uk 2 

Encs 
 
For Attention 
 
Portfolio Holder – Councillor M Tonkin 
 
For Information by Email to: - All remaining Members of the Council 
 



Report No: PP7/20 

Eden District Council 

Executive 

7 April 2020 

Devolution of Upper Eden Visitors Centre, Kirkby Stephen 

Portfolio: Services 

Report from: Assistant Director Commissioning & Technical Services 

Wards: Kirkby Stephen and surrounding wards 

OPEN PUBLIC ITEM 

1 Purpose 

1.1 To consider the devolution of the Upper Eden Visitors Centre in Kirkby 
Stephen to Kirkby Stephen Town Council. 

2 Recommendation 

It is recommended that: 

1) The Upper Eden Visitors Centre in Kirkby Stephen is transferred freehold 
to Kirkby Stephen Town Council with terms imposing restrictive covenants 
on any future use. 

2) That the transfer of the visitors centre includes the stone sheep 
sculptures. 

3) The Assistant Director of Governance be given delegated authority to 
determine the detailed terms of such transfer. 

3 Report Details 

3.1 The Upper Eden Community Interest Company has been in operation since 
April 2012.  It was set up with one of its core purposes of running the Upper 
Eden Visitor Information Centre, previously known as the Kirkby Stephen 
Tourist Information Centre. 

3.2 Kirkby Stephen Tourist Information Centre was previously run by the District 
Council and due to Central Government budget reductions it was one of the 
areas of District Council operations agreed to be ceased. The Upper Eden 
Community Interest Company following Eden District Council’s decision, 
requested the option to take over the running of the service which Council 
approved. The service has now been run as a successful visitor information 
centre since 2012 under a lease arrangement from the District Council. The 
Upper Eden Community Interest Company employs one member of staff to 
run the Centre and a significant number of volunteers are also engaged in 
assisting with the running of the Centre. 

3.3 In recent years the Visitors’ Centre has also hosted a successful commercial 
venture on the upper floor of the building that provides bike repairs and 
servicing. This has helped provide a separate source of income to support the 
Visitors’ Centre. 

Page  3

Agenda Item 2



3.4 As part of the devolution agenda the District Council is pursuing alongside 
Town and Parish Councils, it was felt that there was a clear rationale for 
including the Visitors Centre in Kirkby Stephen as it provides an important 
service for the Town and surrounding area. 

3.5 In agreeing to the transfer consideration will need to be given to the use of the 
building – restricted to being used as a visitor centre or a use which benefits 
the visitor service provided to Kirkby Stephen and the wider Upper Eden area. 

3.6 In previous years Eden District Council have subsidised the running costs of 
the building by offering a grant towards the annual rent of the building which 
was valued at £6,500 per annum. This would cease on transfer of the asset. 

3.7 Within the curtilage of the visitors centre are two dunhouse stone sheep 
sculptures which are currently valued collectively at £5000. These would 
transfer with the visitors centre. 

4 Policy Framework 

4.1 The Council has four corporate priorities which are: 

 Sustainable; 

 Healthy, safe and secure; 

 Connected; and 

 Creative 

4.2 This report meets the sustainable and creative corporate priority. 

5 Consultation 

5.1 Consultation has taken place with both The Upper Eden Community Interest 
Company and Kirkby Stephen Town Council. 

6 Implications 

6.1 Financial and Resources 

6.1.1 Any decision to reduce or increase resources or alternatively increase income 
must be made within the context of the Council’s stated priorities, as set out in 
its Council Plan 2019-2023 as agreed at Council on 7 November 2019. 

6.1.2 The asset transfer of the premises to Kirkby Stephen Town Council could see 
the removal of a potentially valuable asset from the District Council as well as 
the loss of income from renting the building out commercially. 

6.1.3 The Upper Eden Upper Eden Community Interest Company received 100% 
grant to cover the rent in 2018/19 and a 75% grant in 2019/20. This is to 
decrease by 25% each year. 

6.2 Legal 

6.2.1 Local authorities are given powers under the Local Government 1972 Act 
(“the 1972 Act”) to dispose of land in any manner they wish, including sale of 
their freehold interest, granting a lease or assigning any unexpired term on a 
lease, and the granting of easements. The only constraint is that a disposal 
must be for the best consideration reasonably obtainable (save for the grant of 
short tenancies) unless the Secretary of State consents to the disposal. 

Page  4



6.2.2 The Government Circular 06/03: Local Government Act 1972 General 
Disposal Consent (England) 2003 disposal of land for less than the best 
consideration that can reasonably be obtained (“the General Disposal 
Consent”) sets out statutory guidance to local authorities about land disposal 
powers under sections 123 and 127 of the Local Government Act 1972 ("the 
1972 Act"). The Consent removes the requirement for authorities to seek 
specific consent from the Secretary of State for any disposal of land where the 
difference between the unrestricted value of the interest to be disposed of and 
the consideration accepted. 

6.2.3 Specific consent for disposal of land at an undervalue is not required for the 
disposal of any interest in land which the authority considers will help it to 
secure the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of its area. 

6.2.4 Walton Goodland carried out a valuation of assets in March 2019 and 
provided a fair value of £55,844 for Kirkby Stephen visitors centre. This 
provides sufficient information to enable the land and assets to be valued and 
therefore upon a transfer at nominal consideration the level of any discount. It 
is for the Executive as decision maker to weigh up the benefits to it in terms of 
social economic and environmental well-being compared to the financial loss 
to the Council in terms of foregone financial consideration. 

6.3 Human Resources 

6.3.1 The Council does not employ staff at the Upper Eden Visitor Information 
Centre. A member of staff who previously worked for the District Council was 
transferred to the Upper Eden Community Interest Company through Transfer 
of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) regulations.  There will be a 
limited amount of staff time required to consider the various options that are 
open to the Council in considering the asset transfer request. 

6.4 Statutory Considerations 

Consideration: Details of any implications and proposed 
measures to address: 

Equality and Diversity If there are equality implications do Equality 
Assessment and append to the report. Need to 
summarise it. 

Health, Social 
Environmental and 
Economic Impact 

Supporting the Upper Eden Visitor Centre will be 
a key step towards supporting the future of the 
area’s visitor economy 

Crime and Disorder There are no crime and disorder implications 
arising from the report. 

Children and 
Safeguarding 

There are no child protection implications arising 
from the report. 

6.5 Risk Management 

Risk Consequence Controls Required 

The Visitor Centre may The Visitor Centre Consideration and 

Page  5



Risk Consequence Controls Required 

not be able to afford the 
increase in rent through 
the grant reduction and 
see the Centre close. 

becomes unviable and is 
closed leading to a loss 
of a valuable local 
service and reputational 
damage to Eden District 
Council. 

approval if found viable 
of the asset transfer to 
Kirkby Stephen Town 
Council to ensure its 
future sustainability. 

7 Other Options Considered 

7.1 The other option would be to continue as present. 

8 Reasons for the Decision/Recommendation 

8.1 The recommendation supports the Council’s Local Delivery of Services 
Project reported to Council on 16 July 2015 and July 2017 and there is a clear 
wish from Kirkby Stephen Town Council for this asset to be transferred. 

Tracking Information 

Governance Check Date Considered 

Chief Finance Officer (or Deputy)  

Monitoring Officer (or Deputy)  

Relevant Director  

Background Papers: None 

Appendices: None 

Contact Officer: Jane Langston, Assistant Director Commissioning & 
Technical Services 

 

Page  6


	Agenda
	2 Devolution of Upper Eden Visitors Centre, Kirkby Stephen

